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To Our Shareholders, Clients and Friends:

The past year has been a tumultuous period that
has seen our Company attain many of its strate-
gic objectives. Our legacy business, consisting of
DocSTAR and DJS are profitable, growing busi-
nesses that have performed well in a difficult
economic environment. In particular, Thomas
Franceski, President of DocSTAR and DJS has
done an admirable job of strengthening the mar-
keting position and improving the profitability of
both of these divisions. We are proud of their suc-
cess and view-them as important elements in the
future of Authentidate Holding Corp.

However, the major investment going forward
will be to establish the Authentidate technology
as the de facto standard to validate all electron-
ic transmissions whether by e-mail, Internet,
audio or video. Consequently, this letter will
focus on the Authentidate activities and the
progress that we are making in gaining its wide-
spread acceptance.

Our Authentidate team has achieved many of the
goals that we had earmarked as key earlier. In
particular, after extensive discussions, coordina-
tion between several world-class companies and
intense negotiations, we finalized a far-reaching
and landmark alliance agreement with the US
Postal Service to provide the technology as well
as the marketing and sales for the USPS
Electronic Postmark (“EPM"). The EPM, with an
optional electronic signing service, will guaran-
tee with virtual certainty, the who, what, when and
why of any electronic transmission.

This agreement was announced on August 6,
2002 and linked Authentidate's role as the devel-
oper of the EPM technology with the capabilities
and marketing power of many world-class com-
panies including, in particular, IBM, Microsoft
and Unisys. Their support and assistance was
invaluable in developing the plan to implement
this incredible project. As we ramp up our mar-
keting efforts in conjunction with our partners,
we are confident that we will see a rapidly grow-
ing use of the EPM for sensitive business, legal
and medical purposes.

December 2002

The US Postal Service has attained the standing
as the single most trusted entity in the United
States. It is ubiquitous, with offices in nearly
every city, town and hamlet throughout the coun-
try and serves, in many locations, as the center of
activity. In some small towns it is the single most
important gathering place for the citizenry. Now,
all the attributes of the traditional physical post-
mark are being accorded to the EPM, that is, all
the laws, enforcement procedures and attributes
of the physical postmark are also true of the EPM.

Our plan to establish the EPM as the standard for
fime stamping and authentication services will
call upon the marketing strengths of our strategic
partners such as IBM and Microsoft. By embed-
ding the EPM in their products and having it then
made available to their customers we will be able
to dramatically extend our marketing reach.
Studies of the market opportunity prepared by
Microsoft for the US Postal Service show authen-
tication services revenue over a five-year period
could exceed $1.3 billion,

Authentidate is involved with several other initia-
tives that show great promise. In particular, our
German subsidiary, Authentidate International
AG, has certified the Authentidate process in
Germany and consequently, throughout Europe.
By now you all should be aware that Germany has
passed legal regulations, the German Digital
Signature Act, and, subsequently in Europe, the
European Directive, which require all electronic
data to be stored with legal certainty by January
1, 2003. Authentidate is the only legally accredited
service provider to specialize in digital time
stamps.

This singular position has placed our German
subsidiary as a company that can offer a critical
piece of the electronic transaction puzzle.
Indeed, Deutsche Telecom (“DT"), one of the
largest and leading telecommunications compa-
nies in Europe, has recently announced that
its T-Systems subsidiary and Authentidate
International AG have combined their technolo-
gies and resources to offer efficient invoicing
solutions to German and European companies.



One of the most significant invoicing opportuni-
ties is in the collection of VAT, the Value Added
Tax. Considering the number of individual Value
Added Tax bills that are transacted during the
normal course of business, this one application
can generate significant revenue to Authentidate.
In addition, DT is planning to act as the agent for
large corporations that wish to adopt the
DT/Authentidate invoicing solution. Some of the
corporations that are considering using DT as its
invoicing agent send out millions of invoices each
month. Even at $0.05-30.10 per transaction, the
dollar revenue that can be generated could be in
the multimitlions.

A final example that further demonstrates why
we are so excited about the Company's future is
our success in establishing Trac Medical
Solutions, Inc. as the answer to the problem of
receiving timely reimbursement for Certificates
of Medical Necessity (“CMN"). Medicare and
insurance companies require CMNs before pay-
ment can be authorized. To date, the reimburse-
ment process has taken over 100 days instead of
the expected 15 days or so. The added expense of
shuffling paper back and forth between the doc-
tor and the durable medical equipment supplier
(“"DME") is such that the DME is quite willing to
spend $1.00 or more to speed up the reimburse-
ment process. Over 40 million CMNs are prepared
each year. Trac Medical has signed agreements
with several of the leading home health care
providers, including American HomePatient, a
$325 million home medical equipment provider,
Walgreen, and Memorial Hermann Home Health.

Each of the business opportunities described
above is a company maker. We strongly believe
that our business model! is very scalable, that is,
without a substantial increase in investment we
can drive the business to significantly greater
revenue than we have today and, most important-
ly, generate higher gross margins.

Now that the Authentidate process is fully devel-
oped, we are entering a new phase of growth; that
of actively marketing our solutions using the
broad customer bases of our strategic partners.
We have overcome many difficulties in reaching
this pivotal pointin our growth but now are poised
to show dramatic growth, We thank you for your
support during this journey and look forward to
report our many successes in the future.

T3

John Botti
Chairman and CEO
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Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the related notes, and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.”

Year Ended June 30, 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
AlC G 1

[nerations Data

Net Sales $ 16,642,904 $ 17,860,544 $ 15,289,738 $ 17,094,765 $ 33,755,625

Gross Profit 4,552 369 3,677,098 2,879,320 5,500,777 8,022 507

Net (Loss)/

Net Income (9,951 402) (9,340,103 (5,274,043) (3,166,488) {5,464,059)

Basic and Diluted

Net (Loss) /

Net Income

Per Common Share (0.69) (0.63) (0.49) (0.43) 0.74)

Balance Sheet Data

Current Assets 7,320,024 13,524 479 15,232,894 9,857,681 12,138,995

Current Liabilities 5,727,588 4,004,905 1,809,264 6,225,966 4,789 896

Working Capital 1,592,436 9,519,524 13,423,630 3,631,715 7,349,099

Total Assets 26,051,986 25,867 905 21,128,335 14,484 984 14,708,454

Total Long Term

Liabilities 2,379,064 2,325,168 2,351,253 (1) 5,327,901 (2) 3,975,000

Stockholders’ Equity 17,945,334 19,537 832 16,967,818 3,335,705 6,478,226

(1) Long-term liabilities excluding discount of $404,588
(2) Long-term liabilities excluding discount of $534,668




Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operation

Overview

We are involved in the development of security
software technology, document imaging products
and systems integration services and products.
Our products include DocStar document imaging
products, the Authentidate security software prod-
ucts and system integration services and products
through our DJS subsidiary. We also offer, through
our Trac Medical Solutions subsidiary, the
CareCert™ Internet-based medical forms pro-
cessing service, Authentidate products are sold by
Authentidate, Inc., Trac Medical Solutions, Inc.,
Authentidate International, AG and Authentidate
Sports, Inc. Revenues during the current fiscal
year have been primarily derived from systems
integration services and products and sales of our
document imaging products.

In March 1996, we acquired DJS, a system integra-
tor and computer reseller in Albany, NewYork. DJS
is an authorized sales and support provider for
Novell, Microsoft Solutions and Lotus Notes. DJS
sells computer hardware and provides software
and integration services fo businesses to meet
their data management needs.

We estabiished our Authentidate subsidiary dur-
ing the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000 to engage in
the business of providing end users with a soft-
ware-based security service designed to accept
and store a digital code through the Internet which
enables users to prove the authenticity of the date,
time and the content of any electronic document.
The Authentidate product was released for sale in
May, 2001. We contemplate that product integration
development work will be necessary for each appli-
cation or customer. We are in the process of selling
this product and began to record revenue during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. On March 23,
2001, our shareholders approved a proposal to
acquire the outstanding minority interests of our
Authentidate, Inc. subsidiary in exchange for secu-
rities of our company on a 1.5249:1 basis. This pro-
posal was recommended to our shareholders in
connection with the decision of our Board of
Directors to focus on our Authentidate business
line. We currently own approximately 98% of
Authentidate, Inc.

In March 2002, we acquired all the outstanding
capital stock of Authentidate International, AG.
We previously owned 39% of Authentidate
International. Authentidate International sells the
same Authentidate product in the European mar-
ketplace.

We also organized Trac Medical Solutions (f/kfa
WebCMN, Inc.) during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2001 in order to develop a business model to
apply the Authentidate technology to the medical
supply business relating to the automation and
processing of Certificates of Medical Necessity.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, Trac
Medical developed its CareCert™ service and
entered into its first revenue-generating agree-
ment subsequent to the fiscal year end.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, we
established a joint venture, Authentidate Sports,
Inc. (ffk/a Authentidate Sports Edition, Inc.), to
develop an application of our Authentidate tech-
nology to the field of signature authentication
relating to sports memorabilia and entertainment
collectibles. Authentidate Sports is a 50/50 non-
consolidated joint venture and is accounted for on
the equity basis.

Critical Accounting Policies & Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condi-
tion and resuits of operations are based on our
consolidated financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States of
America. The preparation of these financial state-
ments requires us to make estimates and judg-
ments that affect reported amounts of assets, lia-
bilities, revenues and expenses, and related dis-
closures of contingent assets and liabilities. On an
ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, includ-
ing those related to new product launches, bad
debts, inventory obsolescence, recoverability of
equity investments, intangible assets, software
capitalization, deferred tax assets, contingencies
and litigation. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that
are believed to be reasonable under the circum-
stances, the results for which form the basis for




Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operation

making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results could differ
from these estimates under different assumptions.

We believe the following critical accounting poli-
cies require more significant judgments and esti-
mates used in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements. We maintain allowances for
doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of our customers to make
required payments. If the financial condition of our
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, addi-
tional allowances may be required. We loaned
$500,000 to an unrelated company in a planned
acquisition, Zylab International, Inc. Our loan to
Zylab is collateralized by all of Zylab's assets,
including all of its intellectual property. As of June
30, 2002, Zylab had defaulted on the notes. On
September 23, 2002, we closed on a transaction
pursuant to which our loan was repaid on the fol-
lowing terms. Zylab made payment to us of
$350,000 in cash, $50,000 in prepaid license fees for
a product DocStar licenses from Zylab, and agreed
to pay to us 18% of the future net income of Zylab
or a successor company up to $100,000, after a
$75,000 threshold. Accordingly, our planned acqui-
sition of Zylab has been cancelled.

We write down our inventory for estimated obso-
lescence or unmarketable inventory equal to the
difference between the cost of the inventory and
the estimated market value based upon assump-
tions about future demand and market conditions.
If actual market conditions are less favorable than
those projected by management, additional inven-
tory write downs may be required.

We hold an interest in a joint venture company hav-
ing operations or technology in areas within its
strategic focus, none of which are publicly traded.
We monitor the financial condition and results of
such company; however, future adverse changes in
market conditions or poor operating results of the
underlying investments could result in losses or an
inability to recover the carrying value, thereby pos-
sibly requiring an impairment charge in the future.

We have capitalized software development costs
related to our newly launched Authentidate prod-
uct and significant goodwill related to acquisi-
tions, for which the recoverability of such capital-
ized costs and goodwil! is highly dependent on the
future success of the marketing and sales of such
product. If the product is not well received by the
marketplace and the future revenue generated
from such product launch is less than anticipated,
the carrying value of the software development
costs and goodwill may be impaired and require an
impairment charge in the future.

The following analysis of our financial condition
and results of operations should be read in con-
junction with our consolidated financial state-
ments and notes contained elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.

Results of Operations

Fiscal Year 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year 2001

We realized a consolidated net loss of $9,951,402
($.69 per share) and $9,340,103 ($.63 per share) for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Consolidated net sales totaled
$16,642,904 and $17,860,544 for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The sales decrease is due to a decrease in sales
from our DJS Marketing, Inc. (DJS) subsidiary,
where sales decreased from $11,620,407 to
$9,871,823 during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2002. Oftfsetting this decrease was improved sales
in our DocStar Division, where sales increased
from $6,239,579 to $6,719,803. Our Authentidate
subsidiaries, including Trac Medical and
Authentidate International, had sales of $51,178
through June 2002,

Sales declined in DJS for two reasons. The pri-
mary reason is a change in business strategy, as
DJS sold a greater volume of hardware on an indi-
rect sales model, where the sale is passed on to
the manufacturer and DJS receives a fee. The
gross margin is essentially the same as with a



direct sales approach, but DJS can reduce inven-
tory levels and has lower bad debt risks. The sec-
ond reason for the decrease in sales by DJS is the
recessionary pressures confronting the technology
industry in the DJS market area. We cannot quan-
tify the exact effect these pressures have con-
tributed to the sales decline. DocStar sales
increased due to increased demand for its docu-
ment imaging products, as well as the release of a
new version of the software which operates the
DocStar unit, Version 3.0.

The consolidated net loss increase is mainly attrib-
utable to losses incurred by our Authentidate and
Trac Medical subsidiaries. Please see Footnote 16,
“Segment Reporting,' in the consolidated financial
statements. The segment profit for DJS was
$96,801 and the segment profit for DocStar was
$287,859. The Authentidate business line, which
includes Authentidate, Inc.,, Authentidate
International AG and Trac Medical Solutions, Inc.,
incurred significant selling, general and adminis-
trative expenses in the process of building a team
of experienced managers and professionals and
developing a market for their products. Major
expenses include compensation and benefits, pro-
fessional fees, public relations, amortization, rent,
advertising and  marketing.  Authentidate
International revenue is only included subsequent
to March 15, 2002, the date our acquisition was con-
summated. The Authentidate segment loss was
$5,723,055. Corporate expenses also increased due
to a reduction in interest income.

Consolidated gross profit for the fiscal years end-
ing June 30, 2002 and 2001 was $4,552,369 and
$3,677,098, respectively. This increase is due to the
sales increase of DocStar discussed above. The
consolidated profit margin was 27% and 21% for
the years ending June 30, 2002 and 2001, respec-
tively. Gross profit margin is defined as gross prof-
it as a percentage of sales. The increase in gross
profit margin is due to DocStar which realized a
gross profit margin of 54% for the current fiscal
year compared to 37% last year. The increase is due
to sales volume increases, component cost reduc-
tions and increased efficiencies in assembly.

Selling, general and administrative expenses
(S,G&A) consist of all other of our expenses except
product development expenses and interest.
S,G&A expenses amounted to $11,470,073 and
$11,850,719 for the twelve months ended June 30,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease is mainly
due to the Authentidate businesses which have
been controlling costs in an effort to reduce the
cash flow burn rate. DJS S,G&A expenses
decreased slightly during the same period. DocStar
S,G&A expenses increased by approximately
$600,000 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002,
The parent company also incurred a corporate non-
cash expense of $518,000 for stock compensation
expense as a result of the stock conversion to
Authentidate Holding Corp. As a percentage of
sales, S,G&A costs were 69% and 67% for the years
ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Interest expense was $124, 824 and $124,816 for the
years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Our borrowing levels remained relatively constant
during these periods and interest rates remained
unchanged on our long term debt.

Product development expenses, excluding capital-
ized costs, relate to software development for our
Authentidate businesses and for DocStar. These
costs totaled $2,170,173 and $1,221,639 for the
years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The increase is due to product development of the
Authentidate business segments. We have a policy
of capitalizing qualified software development
costs after technical feasibility has been estab-
lished and amortizing those costs over three years
as cost of sales.

Fiscal Year 2001 Compared to Fiscal Year 2000

We realized a consolidated net loss of $9,340,103
($.63 per share) and $5,274,043 ($.49 per share) for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Consolidated net sales totaled
$17,860,544 and $15,289,738 for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The sales increase is due to an increase in sales
from our DJS Marketing, Inc. (DJS) subsidiary
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where sales increased by 20% from $9,699,764 to
$11,620,407. The sales increase is also due to
improved sales in the DocStar Division where
sales increased 12% from $5,589,830 to $6,239,579.
The Authentidate subsidiary has not recognized
significant sales through June 2001.

The consolidated net loss increase is mainly
atiributable to losses incurred by our Authentidate
subsidiary. Please see Footnote 16, “Segment
Reporting” in the consolidated financial state-
ments. The segment profit for DJS improved from
$231,357 to $385,283 and the segment loss for
DocStar decreased significantly from $1,177,239 to
$295,680.The Authentidate subsidiary incurred sig-
nificant selling, general and administrative
expenses in the process of building a team of expe-
rienced managers and professionals. Major
expenses include compensation and benefits, pro-
fessional fees, public relations, amortization, rent,
advertising and marketing. Authentidate expects
to start generating revenue during the first half of
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002. Corporate
expenses also increased mainly due to non cash
compensation expenses resulting from the conver-
sion of Authentidate, Inc. common shares into
Authentidate Holding Corp. common shares.

Consolidated gross profit for the fiscal years end-
ing June 30, 2001 and 2000 was $3,677,098 and
$2,879,320, respectively. This increase is due to the
sales increase of DocStar and DJS discussed
above.The consolidated profit margin was 21% and
19% for the years ending June 30, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Gross profit margin is defined as
gross profit as a percentage of sales. The increase
in gross profit margin is due to DocStar which
realized a gross profit margin of 37% in 2001 com-
pared to 24% in 2000. The increase is due to sales
volume increases, cost reductions and fewer sales
discounts compared to 2000.

Selling, general and administrative expenses
(S,G&A) consist of all other of our expenses
except product development expenses and inter-
est. 5,G&A expenses amounted to $11,950,719 and
$8,016,192 for the twelve months ended June 30,
2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase is mainly
due to Authentidate which has been building a

staff for several months and incurred significant
payroll, consulting, selling and advertising expens-
es. DJS S,G&A expenses increased during the
same period as selling expenses increased as a
result of an increase in sales. DocStar S,G&A
expenses remained about the same. The parent
company also incurred a corporate non-cash
expense of $862,934 for stock compensation
expense as a result of the stock conversion to
Authentidate Holding Corp. As a percentage of
sales, S,G&A costs were 67% and 52% for the
years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Interest expense was $124,816 and $299,994 for the
years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
The decrease is due to the conversion of convert-
ible debt to common stock and the payoff of our
line of credit during the prior fiscal year.

Product development expenses, excluding capital-
ized costs, relate to software development for
Authentidate and for DocStar. These costs totaled
$1,221,639 and $179,696 for the years ended June
30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase is due
to product development of the Authentidate soft-
ware product. We have a policy of capitalizing qual-
ified software development costs after technical
feasibility has been established, and amortizing
those costs over three years as cost of goods sold.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of funds to date have been
the issuance of equity and the incurrence of third
party debt. The principal balance of all long-term
debt at June 30, 2002 totaled $1,317,515, all of which
relates to a mortgage loan on our principal office
located in Schenectady, New York.

In May, 2002, our DJS subsidiary closed on a
$2,000,0000 revolving line of credit with a financial
institution collateralized by all the assets of DJS
and guaranteed by Authentidate Holding Corp.The
interest rate on this line of credit is prime plus
1.75%, with a minimum rate of 7%. DJS may hotrow
on this line of credit based on a formula of quali-
fied accounts receivables and inventory. Based
upon this formula, $247,000 was available for use at
June 30, 2002.



Property, plant and equipment expenditures
totaled $556,398 and newly capitalized software
development expenditures totaled $346,331 for the
twelve months ended June 30, 2002. There are no
significant purchase commitments outstanding.

In June 1999, we completed construction of a new
office and production facility in Schenectady, New
York for approximately $2,300,000, which was
financed with a $1,000,000 grant from the Empire
State Development Corporation (an agency of
New York State) and a mortgage loan from a local
financial institution. The grant stipulates that we
are obligated to achieve certain annual employ-
ment levels between January 2002 and January
2005 or some or all of the grant will have to be
repaid. We have not achieved the agreed upon
employment levels to date, but expect to achieve
such levels by 2005. No assurances can be given
that such employment levels will be achieved by
2005, so the grant has heen classified as a long-
term liability on the balance sheet. In the event
some or all of the grant will be required to be
repaid, we will either seek refinancing from a
tinancial institution, sell the building or pay the
grant off out of cash reserves. Our cash balance at
June 30, 2002 was $2,269,353 and total assets were
$26,051,986. Management believes existing cash
and short-term investments should be sufficient to
meet our operating requirements for the next
twelve months provided the Authentidate busi-
nesses start to generate material sales. In the
event Authentidate, Authentidate International
and Trac Medical do not increase sales materially,
then we will either need to obtain outside financ-
ing, reduce expenses or a combination of both.

During the year ended June 30, 2002, we incurred a
net loss of $9,951,402. Cash used in operating
activities totaled $6,003,316 for the year ended
June 30, 2002, compared to $1,391,651 used in oper-
ating activities for the year ended June 30, 2001.
Our cash halance decreased from $9,040,466 to
$2,269,353 from June 30, 2001 to June 30, 2002
Further, our accumulated deficit increased from
$31,283,665 at June 30, 2001 to $42,999,497 at June
30, 2002. To date, we have been largely dependent
on our ability to sell additional shares of our com-

mon stock to obtain financing to fund our operat-
ing deficits. Under our current operating plan to
introduce the new Authentidate technology, our
ability to improve operating cash flow is highly
dependent on the market acceptance of our prod-
ucts and our ability to reduce overhead costs.
Authentidate and its related businesses, Trac
Medical and Authentidate International, are cur-
rently cash flow negative and along with our oper-
ations were responsible for the negative cash flow
from operations for the year ended June 30, 2002. I
we are unable to attain projected sales levels for
Authentidate and related products and unable to
raise additional capital to fund our operations, we
will be required to implement cost reduction
strategies, including ceasing or reducing the oper-
ations of Authentidate, Authentidate International
orTrac Medical Solutions.

Long-term debt at June 30, 2002 and 2001 consists
of the following:

Mortgage payable with Central National Bank in the original amount
of $1,400,000 with interest, adjusted every five years, equal to the
five-year Treasury Bill rate plus 2.5%, not to be less than 8.25%
(8.25% at June 30, 2002), payable in monthly installments through
October 2019. The mortgage is collateralized by a first mortgage lien
on the Company's headquarters

2002 2001
Total oo, $1317515  $1,350,441
Less current portion.........cc.covveeecian, (35,747) (32,926)
Long-term debt,
net of current portion..........o.ccee. $1281,768  $1317515
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The aggregate principal maturities of long-term
debt for each of the subsequent five years and
thereafter are as follows:

2003 $ 35,747
2004, . 38,810
2005, 42,136
2008, 45,747
2007, ... 49,668
Thereafter................................. 1,105,407

The Company is obligated under operating leases
and capital leases for certain equipment and facil-
ities expiring at various dates through the year
2007. As of June 30, 2002, future minimum pay-
ments by year, and in the aggregate, noncancelable
operating leases with initial terms of one year or
more, consist of the following:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases
Fiscal year ending June 30:
2003 $ 113,419 $ 529,766
2004 85,766 563,113
2005 22,073 535,768
2006 - 430,438
2007 - 162,616
221,258 $ 2,221,701
Amounts representing interest (35,135)
Present value of net
minimum lease payments 186,123
Less current portion (88,827)
Long-term portion $ 97,296

As described in more detail above, we issued an
aggregate of 1,425,875 shares of common stock and
100,000 common stock purchase warrants to the
other equity holders of Authentidate International,
AG in consideration of our acquisition of all out-
standing equity securities issued by Authentidate
International AG. This transaction was consum-
mated as of March 15, 2002 and as a result,
Authentidate Internationai AG is now our wholly-
owned subsidiary. Authentidate International AG
was organized in March 2000 as a joint venture with
a German company, Windhorst New Technologies,
Agi.G., to market Authentidate in countries outside
of the Americas, Japan, Australia, New Zealand
and India. We invested DM 250,000, which was equal
to approximately $124,000, and also granted a
license of the Authentidate technology to the joint
venture vehicle. Additionally, we issued 250,000
common stock purchase warrants to Windhorst in
connection with the joint venture. Windhorst con-
tributed DM 3,000,000 to the joint venture.

In February 2002, we offered the holders of our
Series B common stock purchase warrants the
opportunity to receive new common stock pur-
chase warrants upon the exercise of their Series B
warrants for cash. The Series B warrants were
originally issued in October 1999. The warrant
holders exercising Series B warrants received new
warrants with an exercise price of $2.00 per share,
which was above the market price of our common
stock at the time of the transaction. Holders of
1,080,000 Series B warrants elected to exercise
their Series B warrants, and an aggregate of
1,080,000 new warrants were issued. The new war-
rants expire on October 1, 2004 and do not include
registration rights, although we may elect to
include the shares underlying these new warrants
in any future registration statement we may file.

Subsequent to June 30, 2002, we consummated a
private placement of our securities pursuant to
Rule 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amend-
ed, and/or Rule 506 promulgated thereunder. The
securities offered have a purchase price of $3.03
per unit. We sold an aggregate of 660,077 units of
our securities, each unit comprised of one share of
common stock and one warrant to purchase .20




shares of common stock. The warrants are exer-
cisable at $3.26 per share for a period of five years
from the date of issuance. We received approxi-
mately an aggregate of $1,950,000 in net proceeds
after payment of expenses. The proceeds raised
will be used to increase the business develop-
ment, marketing and sales efforts for the
Authentidate services, along with our general
working capital needs. We agreed to file a regis-
tration statement with the Securities and
Exchange Commission to register for resale the
shares of common stock contained in the units,
including the shares underlying the warrants. |n
the event that we do not timely file the registration
statement, or it is not timely declared effective,
the investors will be entitled to liquidated dam-
ages equal to 2% of the purchase price for each
month that the relevant event is delayed.

We previously disclosed in our Supplement to the
Proxy Statement dated March 13, 2001 that we
received notice of a potential claim from a minori-
ty shareholder of Authentidate, Inc. relative to the
conversion of Authentidate, Inc. stock into
Authentidate Holding Corp. stock. We dispute
these claims and will vigorously oppose them and
we will assert various counter-claims in any such
action. However, in the event that we are unsuc-
cessful in any proceeding commenced to adjudi-
cate this issue, then we may be required to issue
additional shares of our common stock and may
record a non-cash expense, the amount of which
cannot be presently estimated. Management
believes that the claim will not have a material
adverse impact on our financial condition, results
of operations or cash flows.

At our annual meeting of shareholders, held on
March 23, 2001, our shareholders approved a pro-
posal to acquire the outstanding minority interests
of our Authentidate, Inc. subsidiary in exchange for
securities of our company on a 1.5249:1 basis. This
proposal was also recommended to our sharehold-
ers in connection with the decision of our Board of
Directors to focus on our Authentidate business
line. Security holders owning an aggregate of
601,750 shares of common stock and an aggregate
of 616,623 options and warrants of Authentidate,

Inc. have accepted the exchange offer, and we have
issued an aggregate of 917,608 shares of our com-
mon stock and 940,289 options and warrants to
these security holders.

In May 2001, we consummated two financings
under Regulation S, which resulted in our receipt of
an aggregate of $5,500,000 in gross proceeds. In
these transactions we sold a total of 5,500 shares of
our newly created Series C convertible preferred
stock and warrants to purchase 114,000 shares of
our common stock. The Series C preferred stock is
convertible into common stock at a conversion
price of $4.845 per share, and the warrants are exer-
cisable at $4.845 per share for a period of five years
from the date of issuance. The conversion price is
not subject to any resets or adjustment for changes
in the market price of our common stock. The Series
C preferred stock also pays an annual 4% dividend,
payable in cash or stock at our efection, until con-
version or redemption.

We received approximately an aggregate of
$5,200,000 in net proceeds after payment of com-
missions and expenses. The proceeds of these
transactions will be used to increase the business
development, marketing and sales efforts for
Authentidate services, along with our general
working capital needs.

The transactions were completed under
Regulation S of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and the securities sold in the offering
are deemed restricted securities under Regulation
S. We registered for resale, effective as of July 8§,
2002, the shares of common stock which may be:

* issued upon the conversion of the
Series C preferred stock;

* paid as dividends on the
Series C preferred stock; and

* issued upon the exercise of the warrants.

In October and November 1999, we completed
three private equity offerings for approximately
$2,100,000 (approximately $1,900,000 after expens-
es). The investment was structured as follows. In
the first offering we sold 740,000 units for $740,000,
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. each unit consisting of two shares of common

stock and two Series B common stock purchase
warrants. Each warrant entitles the holder to pur-
chase one share of common stock at an exercise
price of $1.375 for five years.

in the second offering we sold 50,000 shares of
Series B convertible cumulative preferred stock
for $1,250,000. Dividends on the Series B preferred
shares are payable at the rate of 10% per annum,
semi-annually. Each of the shares of the Series B
preferred stock is convertible intc such number
of shares of our common stock as shall equal $25
divided by the conversion price of $1.875 per share,
subject to adjustment in certain circumstances.

In November 1999, we completed the third offering
by selling a 20% interest for $100,000 in our new
subsidiary, Authentidate, Inc. In addition, we
issued to the purchasers 999,999 Series C common
stock purchase warrants. The Series C warrants
are divided into three classes of 333,333 warrants
per class which have varying exercise prices, start-
ing at $1.50 per common share and increasing over
time to $3.75 after the effectiveness of a registra-
tion statement covering the underlying shares,
subject to adjustment for stock splits and corpo-
rate reorganizations. The registration statement
was declared effective by the Commission on
February 14, 2000.

Effects of Inflation and Changing Prices

The impact of general inflation on our operations
has not been significant to date, and we believe
inflation will continue to have an insignificant
impact on us. However, price deflation in the major
categories of components we purchase for
DocStar has been substantial and is anticipated
to continue through fiscal 2003. Typically, new com-
ponents such as new generations of microproces-
sors and new optical disk drive technologies etc.
are introduced at premium prices by their vendors.
During this period, we earn lower margins on our
products. As the life cycle progresses, competitive
pressures could force vendor prices down and thus
improve our profit margins. We do not believe that
competitive pressures will require us to lower our
DocStar selling price. Because much of DJS’s

business is service-related, price deflation has
less of an impact on DJS's profits.

New Accounting Standards

in June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
as amended, which establishes accounting and
reporting standards for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embed-
ded in other contracts, and for hedging activities.
We adopted SFAS No. 133 on July 1, 2001. Since we
have not yet entered into any derivative instru-
ments, the adoption of this Standard has not had a
material effect on our financial condition, results
of operations or cash flows.

On June 29, 2001, Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business
Combinations,” was approved by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB). SFAS
No. 141 requires the purchase method of account-
ing to be used for all business combinations initi-
ated after June 30, 2001. To date, the adoption
of this Standard has not had a material effect on
our financial condition, results of operations or
cash flows.

On dJdune 29, 2001, SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets, was approved by the
FASB. SFAS No. 142 changes the accounting for
goodwill from an amortization method to an
impairment-only approach. Amortization of good-
will, including goodwill recorded in past business
combinations, will cease upon adoption of this
statement. We adopted SFAS No. 142 effective
July 1, 2001. We have retained a third party consult-
ant to conduct a valuation of goodwill related to
Authentidate, Inc. and Authentidate International,
AG.To date, the adoption of SFAS 142 has not had
a material impact on our financial position, results
of operations or cash flows.



Present Accounting
Standards Not Yet Adopted

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations!”
SFAS No. 143 requires the fair value of a liability
for an asset retirement obligation to be recognized
in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable
estimate of fair value can be made. The associated
asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of
the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. SFAS
No. 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2002. We believe the adoption of this
Statement will not have a material effect on our
financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets; which supercedes SFAS No.
121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for the Long-Lived Assets to be
Disposed of" and the accounting and reporting
provisions of APB No. 30. SFAS No. 144 addresses
financial accounting and reporting for the impair-
ment or disposals of long-lived assets and is effec-
tive for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2001, and interim periods within those fiscal years.
We believe the adoption of this Statement will not
have a material effect on our financial statements.

In April 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of
FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections
as of April 2002. This Standard addresses a number
of items related to leases and other matters.We are
required to adopt this Standard as of July 1, 2002.
We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 145 to
have material effect on our financial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities.” This Standard addresses the
recognition, measurement and reporting of costs
that are associated with exit or disposal activities.
SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal activ-
ities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, We
do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 146 to have
a material effect on our financial statements.




Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Upon the effectiveness of our public offering on
May 13, 1992, our common stock commenced trad-
ing in the over-the-counter market and was listed
on the SmallCap Market of the Nasdag Stock
Market under the symbol “BTWS.” On August 11,
1994, our common stock commenced trading on the
Boston Stock Exchange under the symbol “BTW."
On June 25, 1996, we withdrew our listing on the
Boston Stock Exchange. On April 24, 1996, our
common stock commenced trading on the Pacific
Stock Exchange. In April, 2000 we commenced
trading on the Nasdaq National Market. On
February 2, 2001, we withdrew our listing on the
Pacific Stock Exchange. Qur common stock cur-
rently trades under the symhol “"ADAT.”

The following is the range of high and low closing
prices for our common stock on the Nasdag
National Market for the periods indicated below:

Fiscal Year 2002
1st Quarter $ 5.30 $ 2.30
2nd Quarter 4.98 3.50
3rd Quarter 5.24 1.90
4th Quarter 5.85 3.12
Fiscal Year 2001
1st Quarter 6.688 3.875
2nd Quarter 6.0625 3.25
3rd Quarter 5.375 2.938
4th Quarter 6.31 3.93
Fiscal Year 2000
1st Quarter 1.46875 0.875
2nd Quarter 19.875 1.125
3rd Quarter 18.25 11.25
4th Quarter 13.6875 5.875

The above quotations represent prices between
dealers and do not include retail mark-ups, mark-
downs, or commissions, and do not necessarily
represent actual transactions.

As of September 11, 2002, there were approximate-
ly 417 holders of record of our common stock. We
believe there are more than 500 beneficial holders
of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

We have not paid any dividends upon our common
stock since our inception. We do not expect to pay
any dividends upon our common stock in the fore-
seeable future and plan to retain earnings, ifany, to
finance the development and expansion of our
business. Further, our Certificate of Incorporation
authorizes our Board of Directors to issue pre-
ferred stock with a preferential right to dividends.
We are obligated to pay dividends on certain of our
outstanding shares of preferred stock as follows:

- 28,000 shares of our Series B preferred stock
which have the right to receive dividends
equal to an annual rate of 10% of the issue
price payable on a semi-annual basis; and

* 4,000 shares of our Series C preferred stock
which have the right to receive dividends
equal to 4% of the issue price on an annual
basis payable in either cash or shares of our
common stock, at our discretion.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

Warrant Issuance

We entered into a corporate advisory services
agreement with Sands Brothers & Co,, Ltd. as of
February 8, 2002. Pursuant to this agreement, we
issued to Sands warrants to purchase 37,500
shares of our common stock initially exercisable
at $3.20 per share and exercisable until February
7, 2007. This agreement was terminated as of
May 29, 2002.




Report of Independent Accountants

PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Authentidate Holding Corp. and Subsidiaries

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consol-
idated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, shareholders’ equity and
cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Authentidate
Holding Corp. and its Subsidiaries at June 30, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30,
2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s man-
agement; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disciosures in the financial state-
ments, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

pmam&»&uwt(wruo LLP

Albany, New York
August 29, 2002




Authentidate Holding Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2002 and 2001

2002 2001
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .. ....... ... .. .ot $ 2,269,353 $ 9,040,466
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $609,185 and $532,241 on June 30, 2002 and 2001 ............. 4,222,472 3,574,728
Duefromrelated parties .. ... ... ... .. .. 27,444 14,825
VEMONES .o e 479,702 800,404
Note receivable ... oo 197,287 —
Prepaid expenses and other currentassets ... . ...... ... . ..o 123,766 94,006
Total current @ssets . ... o e 7,320,024 13,524,429
Property and equipment, net . .. ... 4,008,925 3,562,372
Other assets:
Software development costs, net of accumulated amortization
of $2,556,824 and $1,469,531 on June 30, 2002 and 2001 .......... 1,161,650 1,905,613
Goodwill. . . .o e 12,439,145 5,276,136
Investment in affiliated companies . ...... .. ... .. ... . 294,427 1,440,854
Patent Costs, Met . . oo o e 235,789 86,422
Otherintangible assets ... ... i i 258,766 67,632
Notereceivable . ... .. . e e 302,713 —
OHNer @85BS . . o e 30,547 4,447
Total assets . .. ... $26,051,986 $25,867,905
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . .. ... . e e $ 1,899,786 $ 2,765,606
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities . . . ... ... oo 1,932,034 1,200,770
Current portion of obligations under capital leases . .. ..................... 88,827 4,970
Current portion of long-term debt .. . ... . ... . L 35,747 32,926
Lineofcredit .. ..o e 1,753,394 —
Income taxes payable . ... ... . . L 17,800 633
Total currentliabilities .. ... ... . . . 5,727,588 4,004,905
Longtermdebt, met .. ... . e 1,281,768 1,317,515
Deferred grant . .. ... 1,000,000 1,000,000

Obligations under capital leases, net of current portion . ........... .. ... ... .... 97,296 7,653

Total liabilities . . ... ... 8,106,652 6,330,073
Commitments and contingencies:
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock $.10 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized;
Series A — 100 shares issued and outstanding &t June 30, 2002
and June 30, 2001 . ... e 10 10
Series B — 28,000 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2002
and 48,000 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2001 ........... 2,800 4 800
Series C — 4,000 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2002
and 5,500 shares issued and outstanding at June 30,2001 . ... ........ 400 550
Common stock, $.001 par value; 40,000,000 shares authorized;
19,308,594 shares issued at June 30, 2002 and
16,114,093 shares issued at June 30,2001 and .. ....... ... . ... .. 19,309 16,114
Additional paid-in capital . . ... ... 61,376,632 51,634,783
Accumulated deficit .. .. . (42,999,497) {31,283,665)
18,399,654 20,372,592
Currency translation adjustment ... ... ... . 53,111 —
Other eqUIty ... oo e (507,431) (834,760)
Total shareholders’ equity ......... .. o i 17,945,334 19,537,832
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . ....... ... . ... .. ... $26,051,986 $25,867,305

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



Authentidate Holding Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended June 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000

2002 2001 2000
Net sales:
Product SEIES ... $ 15,135,663 16,472,754 14,182,181
SEIVICE SAlES wovvvieii e 1,507,241 1,387,790 1,107,557
Total Net SAlES. ..o e 16,642,904 17,860,544 15,289,738
Cost of sales:
PrOQUCES .vtiie it 11,398,458 13,536,309 11,865,290
SBIVICES o iivivi ettt et e s 692,077 647,137 545,128
Total cost of SAIES ..vvviiviiieei e 12,090,535 14,183,446 12,410,418
Grossprofit..............oii 4,552,369 3,677,098 2,879,320
Selling, general and administrative exXpenses............cccoovvevoeennn. 11,470,073 11,850,719 8,016,192
Product development eXPeNSES .. ......vceivivriisiveieiiieiaaiiiieeenns 2,170,173 1,221,639 179,696
Total operating eXpenses .......cccoveeviiviiiiiiinineniinnns 13,640,246 13,172,358 8,195,888
Loss from operations...............ccocoeviiiiiiennn (9,087,877) (9,495,260) (5,316,568)
Other income (expense):
Interest and other iINCOME ..o 180,360 399,996 311,493
INTErESt BXPENSE oviivr et et renie e (124,824) (124,816) (299,994)
Equity in net loss of affiliated companies ...........ccc.oeeveein (958,788) (104,023) (5,715)
(903,252) 171,157 5,784
Loss before income taxes ...............oocevviiveiienn (9,991,129) (9,324,103) (5,310,784)
Income tax (expense¥benefit .....c.ooooveeviiii (14,119) {16,000) 102
Loss before minority interest ...................... (10,005,248) (9,340,103) (5,310,682)
Minority Interest ... .....voeeiii 53,846 — 36,639
NEt 0SS ..o, $ (9,951,402 (9,340,103) (5,274,043)
Per share amounts:
Basic and diluted loss per common share .........ccoveeennns $ (.69) (.63) (.49)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Authentidate Holding Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' €Equity and Comprehensive Loss
Years Ended June 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Preferred Stock Common Stock Total Comprehensive

Number $.10 Par Number $.001 Par Paid-in Accumulated Other Treasury Translation | Sharehotders’ Income
of Shares Value of Shares Value Capital Defigit Equity Stock Adjustment Equity (Loss)

Balance, June 30, 1999 200 | $ 20 7410745 | $ 7411 |$ 19,846,126 | 3 (16441,133) | § $(76,719) | § $ 3335705 |§

Warrants issued for

non-employee services 390,221 390,221

Private equity offering 50,000 5,000 1,480,000 1,480 1,850,466 1,896,946

Conversion of debt to equity 1,223,075 1,223 3,384,484 3,385,707

Exercise of stock warrants 3,753,922 3.754 10,780,447 10,784,201

Warrants issued for interest in

Authentidate Intemational AG 1,119.814 1,119,814

Stock issued for

non-employee services 72,750 73 105,641 105,714

Exercise of stock options 481,266 481 1,297,559 1,298,040

fnvestment in

Authentidate, Inc. 98,861 98,861

Costs of regjstration (79.945) I (79,945)

Dividends (93,403) (93,403)

Net loss (5,274,043) (5,274,043)

Balance e 30, 2000 50,200 5,020 14,421,758 14,422 38,740,271 (21,715,176} (76,719) 16,967,818

Exercise of stock warrants 459,516 459 1,584,087 1,584,546

Exercise of stock options 316,626 317 198,775 199,092

Retire treasury shares (28,082) (28) 28 (76.719) 76,719 —

Convert preferred stock

to common stock (2,000} (200) 26,667 26 174 —

Purchase of an equity

interest in Authentidate, Inc. 917.608 918 4,243,019 4,243,937

Private equity offerings 5,500 550 5,204,308 5,204,858

Retire preferred shares (100 (10) 10 —

Warrants far

non-employee services 204,042 204,042

Costs of registration ! (32,474} (32,474)

Stock option compensation 1,380,694 (517,760) 862,934

Warrants issued to joint

venture partner 111,849 111,849

Cash dividends o Series B (151,667) (151,667)

preferred shareholders

Loan o shareholder {317,000 (317,000

Net loss (9,340,103) (9.340,103)

Balance e 30, 200 53,600 5,360 | 16,114,093 16,114 51,634,783 (31,283,665) (834,760) 19,537,832

Exercise of stock warrants 1,108,517 1,110 1,574,520 1,575,630

Exercise of stock options 31,939 32 80,296 80,328

Convert preferred stock

to common stock (21,500) (2,150) 576.263 576 1,574 —

Purchase of Authentidate AG 1,425,875 1,426 6,393,881 6,395,307

Warrants for services 74,572 74,572

Costs of registration (66,943) (66,943)

Stock option compensation 517,760 517,760

Cash and stock dividends to

Series B and Series C i

preferred shareholders 50,847 51 219,947 (300,428) (80,430

Loan to executive (190,431)| (190,431)

Currency translation 53,111 53,111 53,111

adjustment

Beneficial conversion 1,464,002 (1,464,002) —

Net loss (9.951,402) (9,951,402 (9,951,402)

Comprehensive loss

Balance e 30, 200 32,100 | $ 3,210 | 19,308,594 | § 19,309 | $ 61,376,632 | § (42,999,497) [ $ (507,431) | $ — |$ 53111 | $17,945334 | $ (9,898,291)

6 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Authentidate Holding Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
Years Ended June 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000

2002 2001

Cash flows from operating activities
Net1oss e e $ (9,851,402) $ (9,340,103)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used in operating activities

2000

$ (5,274,043)

Depreciation and amortization .. ................ 1,690,382 1,814,278 916,532
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable ... ....... 53,965 152,711 175,799
Equity in net loss of affiliated companies . .......... 958,788 104,023 —
Non-cash dividends .. ......... ... v, 219,998 — —
Non-cash compensation and other .. ............. 763,061 1,066,976 173,405
Changes in operating assets and liabilities,
net of business acquired
Accounts receivable and due from related parties . . (642,299) 539,750 731,458
Inventories . ....... . ... ... 320,702 1,551,983 1,472,000
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ... ... 87,618 516,000 (122,928)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other current liabilities . .. .............. 478,702 2,186,627 (3,147,656)
Incometaxes . ........... .. 17,169 16,104 (3,341)
Other ... . — — 100
Net cash used in operating activities ...... (6,003,316) (1,391,651) (5,078,674)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment . ............... (556,598) (893,181) {(358,554)
Trademarks acquired . . ... . . (42,673) (27,114) (23,331)
Patent coSts .. ... e (174,240) (47,985) (30,796)
Software development costs ... ... ... .. ... . ... .. (346,331) (2,764,678) (485,293)
Notereceivable . . ...... .. ... .. . . .. . .. .. ... (500,000} — —
Investments in affiliated companies .. ................ (385,568) (250,000) (230,961)
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired . . ... ... .. .. 58,078 — —
Other ... e e (33,678) (4,149) —
Net cash used in investing activities . . ... .. (1,981,010) (3,987,107) (1,128,935)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from private equity offering . . ....... ... ..., — 5,204,858 1,896,846
Stock warrants exercised .. ... ... 1,575,630 1,584,546 10,784,201
Stock options exercised ... ... ... ... . . L 80,328 199,092 1,298,040
DIVIENdS . . ... {104,525) (151,667) (93,403)
Outside investments in Authentidate, Inc. .. ... ......... — — 98,3861
Costs of conversion of debttoequity . ................ — — (10,000)
Principal payments on obligations under capital leases . . . .. (47,920) (3,300) —
Loan to shareholder, net of repayments .. ............. (190,431) {317,000) —
Payment of registrationcosts ............. ... . ... (66,943) (32,474) (79,945)
Net payments under lineofcredit . .................. — — (1,274,779)
Proceeds from borrowings on long-term debt . . ... .. .. ... — — 165,152
Principal payments on long-term debt ... .......... ... (32,926) (30,327) (18,876)
Receipt of deferred revenue from
economic development grant . ... ... L — — 857,811
Net cash provided by financing activities ... 1,213,213 6,453,728 13,624,008
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents . ........ (6,771,113) 1,074,970 7,416,399
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . ............ 9,040,466 7,965,496 549,097
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period ................ $ 2,269,353 $ 9,040,466 $ 7,965,496

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Authentidate Holding Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of business and business continuity

Authentidate Holding Corp. (AHC) and its subsidiaries Authentidate, Inc., Authentidate
International AG, (AG), DJS Marketing Group, Inc. (DJS), and Trac Medical Solutions, Inc. (Trac
Med), collectively referred to as the "Company,” are engaged in the following businesses. Through
its DocStar Division, the Company markets and sells document imaging products and proprietary
software. Through DJS the Company markets network integration services, Internet services and
related computer hardware. Authentidate, AG and Trac Med are all engaged in the business of
providing authentication and security software services. AHC was formerly known as Bitwise
Designs, Inc. The name change was approved by the shareholders in March 2001 as the Company
has become more focused on software with DocStar and security software services through
Authentidate, AG and Trac Med.

In June 1999, AHC established a majority owned subsidiary, Authentidate, inc. (Authentidate), to
engage in a new software service business providing users with a service which can verify the
authenticity of digital images by employing a secure clock that will date stamp the images when
received, providing proof of time, date and also proof of content via the Internet.

In 2001, the Company formed a subsidiary named Trac Medical Solutions, Inc. to develop and pro-
vide authentication software services in the medical supply industry for the processing of
Certificates of Medical Necessity.

In March 2000, Authentidate, Inc. formed a joint venture known as Authentidate International
Holdings, AG, with a German company, Windhorst New Technologies, Agi.G., to market
Authentidate in countries outside of the Americas, Japan, Australia, New Zealand and India.
AHC owned 39% of this joint venture originally. In March 2002, the Company purchased the 61% of
Authentidate AG that it did not own in order to secure worldwide rights for the marketing of the
Authentidate technology. Prior to consolidation (March 2002), the Company's share of net losses
of AG under the equity method of accounting for fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 was $625,282.

in May 2001, the Company became a 50% owner in a joint venture known as Authentidate Sports,
Inc. (Sports) with outside partners to provide the same Authentidate services in the sports mem-
orabilia industry. The Company contributed $250,000, while the outside partners contributed in the
aggregate $250,000 of equipment and other consideration to Sports. The Company is required to
contribute an additional $750,000 subject to certain conditions being met as defined in the joint
venture agreement. The Company is accounting for the activities of the joint venture under the
equity method of accounting. The Company's share of net losses in this joint venture in 2002
approximated $334,000.



Description of business and business continuity (continued)

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the Company incurred a net loss of $9,951,402, and cash
used in operating activities totaled $6,003,316. The Company's available cash balance at June 30,
2002 totaled approximately $2,269,000. To date, the Company has been largely dependent on its abil-
ity to sell additional shares of its common stock or other financing to fund its operating deficits.
Under its current operating plan to introduce the new Authentidate technoliogy, the Company’s
ability to improve operating cash flow is highly dependent on the market acceptance of the
Authentidate related businesses and the Company's ability to reduce overhead cosis. If the
Company is unable to attain projected sales levels for Authentidate, AG and Trac Med, it may be
necessary to raise additional capital to fund operations and meet its obligations.There is no assur-
ance that such funding will be available, if needed. Ifthe Company is unable to raise additional cap-
ital necessary to fund operations for 2003 and is unable to attain projected sales levels for
Authentidate and related products, then it will implement cost reduction strategies in early fiscal
2003, including the possible shutdown or reduction of operations at Authentidate, AG, orTrac Med.

Purchase 100 % interest of Authentidate International, AG.

In March 2002, the Company purchased 61% of the outstanding shares of Authentidate
{nternational, AG which it did not already own, and as a result, now owns 100% of AG. The
Company issued 1,425,875 common shares and issued 100,000 common stock warrants to the sell-
ers. The sellers also returned 250,000 outstanding warrants to the Company as part of the trans-
action.The sellers have agreed to place 300,000 common shares of AHC in escrow for 6 months as
security for potential unrecorded liabilities. Also, as part of the acquisition, the Company issued
151,500 vested employee stock options to three executives of AG with an exercise price of $.01
share. The acquisition was recorded under the purchase method of accounting. The operations of
AG have been included in the statement of operations since the acquisition date of March 15,
2002. Below is a table summarizing what the Company's unaudited operating results would have
been if AG’s operating results were included with the Company’s consolidated statement of oper-
ations for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001.

2002 2001
Consolidated sales including AG ... ... ... ... . . . . .. $16,915,413 $ 17,994,088
Consolidated net loss including AG . ... ... ... .. . . (11,136,075) (10,005,292)

Par SharE . (.76) (.68)
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Purchase 100% interest of Authentidate International, AG. (continued)

Summary of assets acquired, liabilities assumed and purchase price paid for 61% of the
outstanding shares of AG:

Fair market value of common stock issued . . . . ... e e $ 5,629,355
Fair market value of common stock warrants and options issued net of warrants returned ... ... .. 765,953
Total purchase price paid .. ... . i e e 6,395,308
Liabilities assumed . . . . 877,416
Fair value of assets acquired ... ... . .. it e e (562,923)

Net liabilities assumed . .. .. o 314,493

GOOWIll L e e e $ 6,709,801

The assets acquired of $562,923 comprised approximately $126,000 in cash and $117,000 in
prepaids and other current assets, in addition to other various assets. Accounts payable makes
up approximately $153,000 of the liabilities assumed, while the remaining balance relates to
accrued expenses.

Summary of Goodwill and other intangible assets recorded:

Total Goodwill recognized ... ... e e e e $ 7,283,009
Other intangible assets recognized:
Completed technologies . . .. .. i 59,400
Accreditation . .. ... ... e e 121,800
TOal o $ 7,464,209

The fair market value of common stock warrants and options was determined using the “Black
Scholes Model' The value of intangible assets recognized was determined by an independent
valuation firm.

Purchase minority interest of Authentidate, Inc.

In fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, the Company issued 917,608 shares of Authentidate Holding
Corp. common stock (valued at approximately $4,200,000) to acquire approximately 25% of the out-
standing shares not owned by AHC of Authentidate, Inc. As of June 30, 2002, the Company owns
approximately 98% of Authentidate, Inc. The acquisition of the minority interest has been account-
ed under the purchase method of accounting. The excess purchase price, which approximates
$4,200,000, was being amortized over a 5-year period. Beginning July 1, 2001, the Company no
longer amortizes goodwill (see “New Accounting Pronouncements”).

In connection with the aforementioned transaction, the Company’s CEOQ was granted options to
acquire 444,668 shares of Company common stock with an intrinsic value of approximately
$1,380,000, which was expensed during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2001 and June 30, 2002.



Principles of consolidation .

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of AHC and its subsidiaries. The
accounts of the subsidiaries have been consolidated since the acquisition date. All material
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities not exceeding
three months to be cash equivalents. At June 30, 2002 and 2001, cash equivalents were composed
primarily of investments in cammercial paper and overnight interest hearing deposits.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and are valued at average cost.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are determined using
the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives of the assets range from three to forty years.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Renewals and betterments are cap-
italized. When assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, the applicable costs and accu-
mulated depreciation or amortization are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognized.

Software development costs

Software development and modification costs incurred subsequent to establishing technological
feasibility are capitalized and amortized based on anticipated revenue for the related product
with an annual minimum equal to the straight-line amortization over the remaining economic life
of the related products (generally three years). Software development costs capitalized during
2002 and 2001 amounted to $347,829 and $2,764,678, respectively. Amortization expense related to
software development costs for the years ended June 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $1,087,293,
$1,033,646 and $485,837, respectively. These expenses were included in product development
expenses in prior years. However, the Company has reclassitfied these costs as cost of sales
which is more consistent with industry standards. As a result, the Statements of Operations for
the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000 were adjusted to reflect the transfer of $1,033,646 and
$435,837 from product development expenses to cost of goods sold for the years ended June 30,
2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill was amortized on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from 5 to 20 years through
June 30, 2001. However, beginning in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002, the Company applied
SFAS No. 142 (see new accounting pronouncements under Footnote 1).

The Company periodically reviews goodwill to assess recoverability, and impairments would be
recognized in operating results if a permanent diminution in value were to accur. In connection
with adoption of SFAS 142, the Company completed an initial transaction impairment test, as well
as an annual impairment test as required. These tests did not result in any impairment charges.
The amortization charged against earnings in 2001 and 2000 was $222,753 and $86,287, respec-
tively, which did not have a material impact on net loss per basic and diluted share in 2001 and
2000. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2002 and 2001 was $758,789. The changes in the carry-
ing amount of goodwill for the year ended June 30, 2002 are as follows:

DIS Authentidate AG Total
Balance, June 30, 2001 $ 1,173665 $ 4,102471 $ $ 5276,136
Reclass to patents based on valuation (120,000) {120,000)
Purchase 61% of AG 6,709,801 6,709,801
Reclassification of 39% of AG 573,208 573,208
June 30, 2002 $ 1173665 $ 3982471 $ 7,283,009 $ 12,439,145

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change
in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Revenue recognition and warranty provisions

Revenue from the sale of products and services is recognized when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the selling price is fixed and collectibility is reason-
ably assured. Service revenue is recognized as it is earned. The Company provides a one-year
warranty on hardware products it assembles. On products distributed for other manufacturers,
the original manufacturer warranties the product. Warranty expense was not significant to any of
the years presented.



New accounting pronouncements

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended, which establishes accounting and
reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embed-
ded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. The Company adopted SFAS No. 133 on July 1,
2001. Since the Company has not yet entered into any derivative instruments, the adoption of this
standard has not had a material effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations
or cash flows.

On dJune 29, 2001, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business
Combinations,” was approved by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). SFAS No.
141 requires the purchase method of accounting to be used for all business combinations initiat-
ed after June 30, 2001. To date, the adoption of this Standard has not had a material effect on its
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

On June 29, 2001, SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” was approved by the
FASB. SFAS No. 142 changes the accounting for goodwill from an amortization method to an
impairment-only approach. Amortization of goodwill, including goodwill recorded in past busi-
ness combinations, will cease upon adoption of this statement. The Company adopted SFAS No.
142 effective July 1, 2001. To date the adoption of SFAS 142 has not had a material effect on its
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Present accounting standards not yet adopted

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.”
SFAS No. 143 requires the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation to be recog-
nized in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The
associated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived
asset. SFAS No. 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The Company
believes the adoption of this Statement will not have a material effect on its financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets,” which supercedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for the Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of,” and the accounting and report-
ing provisions of APB No. 30. SFAS No. 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the
impairment or disposals of long-lived assets and is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company believes the adop-
tion of this Statement will not have a material effect on its financial statements.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64,”
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections as of April 2002. This Standard
addresses a number of items related to leases and other matters. The Company is required to
adopt this Standard as of July 1, 2002. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 145
to have material effect on its financial statements.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(continued)

Present accounting standards not yet adopted, (continued)

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities.” This Standard addresses the recognition, measurement and reporting of
costs that are associated with exit or disposal activities. SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or dis-
posal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company does not expect the adop-
tion of SFAS No. 146 to have a material effect on its financial statements,

Advertising expenses
The Company recognizes advertising expenses as incurred. Advertising and promotion expense
for 2002, 2001 and 2000 was approximately $454,000, $835,000 and $1,363,000, respectively.

Use of estimates

Management of the Company has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the
reporting of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to pre-
pare these consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

It is the Company's policy to reclassify, where appropriate, prior year financial statements to con-
form to the current year presentation.

Loss Per Share

The following is basic and diluted loss per common share information:

2002 2001 2000
INEELOSS e $  (9,951,402) $  (9,340,103) $ (5274,043)
Preferred stock dividends ... (1,764,430) (151,667) (93,403)
Net loss applicable to COMMON.......vivviiiiiieenreee, $ (11,715,832) $  (9491,770) $ (5,367,446)
Weighted average shares ...........cooveeiiiivnriiiiiiinninens 17,035,030 15,013,135 10,953,284
Basic and diluted loss per common share .................. $ (.69) $ {(.63) 3 (.49)

Options (5,280,000), warrants (2,685,000) and convertible preferred stock (1,190,000) were antidilutive
to the calculation of dilutive loss per share, and were accordingly excluded from the calculation.



Inventories

Inventories related to DocStar and DJS only at June 30, 2002 and 2001 consist of:

2002 2001
Purchased components and raw materials ..................... $ 317772 % 520,915
Finished goods ..o 161,930 278,489

$ 479,702 % 800,404

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment at June 30, 2002 and 2001 consist of the following:

2002 2001 Estimated
Useful Life
In Years
Building ....... .. . . e $ 1618640 $ 1,614,611 40
Land .. e 698,281 698,281 N/A
Machinery and equipment . ... ... . ... L 3,467,848 2,478,377 3-6
Demonstration and rental computers . . .......... .. 125,732 125,732 5-6
Fumiture and fixtures .. ........ .. ... ... ... ... 272,447 229,882 5-7
Leasehold improvements ... ...... ... ... .. . L 48,893 17,613 5
Vehicles ... o e — 15,090 5
6,231,841 5,179,586
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,222,916) (1,617,214)

$ 4,008925 $ 3,562,372

In June 1999, the Company completed construction of a new office/production facility in
Schenectady, New York for approximately $2,300,000. The Company was awarded a grant totaling
$1,000,000 from the Empire State Development Corporation (an agency of New York State) to be
used toward the construction of the facility. The funding was received in stages as costs were
incurred and submitted for reimbursement. The grant stipulates that the Company is obligated to
achieve certain annual employment levels at the new site between January 1, 2002 and January 1,
2005 or some or all of the grant will have to be repaid. The Company has not achieved the agreed
upon employment levels to date, but would like to.achieve such levels by 2005. As of June 30, 2000,
$1,000,000 had been received and is recorded as deferred revenue. The remainder of the financing
for the new facility, totaling approximately $1,400,000, was provided by a local financial institution
in the form of a mortgage loan (See Note 6).

Depreciation and amortization expense on property and equipment for the years ended June 30,
2002, 2001 and 2000 was $553,615, $377,832 and $274,148, respectively.
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5. Lline of Credit

In May 2002, the Company’s subsidiary DJS secured a new revolving line of credit in the amount
of $2 million, with a financial institution, of which approximately $1,753,000 was outstanding at
June 30, 2002. The interest rate is prime plus 1.75% (8.75% at June 30, 2002) with a minimum prime
rate of 7%. DJS may borrow on this line based on a formula of qualified accounts receivable and
inventory. Based upon this formula, $247,000 was available for use at June 30, 2002. The line was
collateralized by all assets of DJS and is guaranteed by Authentidate Holding Corp. Under the
line of credit agreement, DJS is required to comply with certain restrictive covenants, including
tangible net worth and debt to tangible net worth. At June 30, 2002, DJS was in default of certain
covenants but obtained a waiver of default from the financial institution.

6. lLong-term Debt

Long-term debt at June 30, 2002 and 2001 consists of the following:

2002 2001
Mortgage payable with Central National Bank in the original
amount of $1,400,000 with interest, adjusted every five years,
equal to the five-year Treasury Bill rate plus 2.5%, not to be less
than 8.25% (8.25% at June 30, 2002), payable in monthly
instaliments through October 2019. The mortgage is collateralized
by a first mortgage lien on the Company’s headquarters. $ 1,317,515 $ 1,350,441
Less current portion (35,747) (32,926)
Long-term debt, net of current portion $ 1,281,768 $ 1,317,515

The aggregate principal maturities of long-term debt for each of the subsequent five years and
thereafter are as follows:

2003 $ 35,747
2004 38,810
2000 L 42,136
2006 ... e 45,747
2007 49,668
Thereafter . ... e 1,105,407

$ 1,317,515




Income Taxes

Income tax expense {benefit) for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 consists of currently
payable state and local income taxes.

At June 30, 2002, the Company has federal net operating loss carryforwards for tax purposes
approximating $36,000,000. The years in which the net operating loss carryforwards expire are as
follows: 2003-$3,000; 2004-$6,000; 2008-$1,568,000; 2009-$867,000; 2011-$2,762,000; 2012-$686,000;
2013-$3,197,000; 2019-$1,350,000; 2020-$7,698,000; 2021-$9,900,000 and 2022-$8,000,000.

Because of signiticant changes in ownership during the prior years, the use of net operating loss
carryforwards may be subject to limitation.

The following table reconciles the expected tax benefit at the federal statutory rate of 34% to the
effective tax rate.

2002 2001 2000

Computed expected tax benefit . . ... ... ... ... .. $ (3,396,984) $ (3,170,195) $ (1,805,666)
Increase in valuation allowance .. ............... 3,125,204 3,008,814 1,550,443
Nondeductible goodwill amortization . ... .......... — 136,770 27,638
Adjustment to prior years'taxes .. ............ ... 261,280 20,871 220,104
State income taxes, net of federal benefit . ... ....... 9,319 10,560 (67)
Other nondeductible expenses .. ................ 15,300 9,180 7,446
$ 14,119 $ 16,000 $ (102)

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to deferred tax assets and deferred tax lia-
bilities as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 are presented below:

2002 2001

Deferred income tax asset:
Allowance for doubtful accounts .. ............. $ 207,123 $ 180,162
Inventories, principally due to additional costs
inventoried for tax purposes pursuant to the

Tax Reform Act of 1986 and inventory reserves . 196,558 363,784
Other liabilities . .. ....... ... ... ... ....... 540,224 214,235
Deferred revenue ... ... .. . — 15,786
Net operating loss carry forward .. ............. 12,268,900 9,548,781
Total gross deferred tax assets . ............ 13,212,805 10,322,748
Less valuation allowance ... ................. (12,779,735) (9,654,531)
Net deferred tax asset .. ................. 433,070 668,217
Deferred income tax liability:
Software development costs . ............. (394,961) (647,108)
Equipment, principally due to differences
in depreciation methods . . ............ (38,109} (21,109}
Net deferred income taxes ..........oovvivnnn.. $ -0- $ -0-

27



Authentidate Holding Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Income Taxes {continued)

The Company has recorded a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax asset, since it
believes it is more likely than not that such deferred tax asset will not be realized. The valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets as of July 1, 2002 and 2001 was $12,779,735 and $9,654,531,
respectively. The net change in the total valuation allowance for the years ended June 30, 2002 and
2001 was an increase of $3,125,204 and $3,008,314, respectively.

8. Lease Commitments

The Company is obligated under operating leases and capital leases for certain equipment and
facilities expiring at various dates through the year 2007.

As of June 30, 2002, future minimum payments by year, and in the aggregate, noncancelable oper-
ating leases with initial terms of one year or more consist of the following:

Capital Leases Operating Leases
Fiscal year ending June 30:

2003 L. e $ 113419 $ 529,766

2004 e 85,766 563,113

2005 L. e 22,073 535,768

2006 .. — 430,438

2007 e — 162,616

221,258 $ 2,221,701

Amounts representing interest (35,135) -
Present value of net minimum lease payments 186,123
Less current portion (88,827)
Long-term portion $ 97,269

Rental expense was approximately $345,000, $272,000 and $69,000 for the years ended June 30,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The amount of accumulated amortization for capital leases at
June 30, 2002 was $29,513. The equipment financed by these capital leases may be purchased at
the end of the lease for a bargain purchase amount.

9. Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors is authorized to issue shares of preferred stock, $.10 par value per share,
from time to time in one or more series. The Board may issue a series of preferred stock having
the right to vote on any matter submitted to shareholders including, without limitation, the right
to vote by itself as a series, or as a class together with any other or all series of preferred stock.
The Board of Directors may determine that the holders of preferred stock voting as a class will
have the right to elect one or more additional members of the Board of Directors, or the majority
of the members of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has designated a series of pre-
ferred stock which has the right to elect a majority of the Board of Directors.The holders of Series
A preferred stock which have the right to elect a majority of the Board of Directors are therefore
able to control the Company’s policies and affairs.



10.

The Board of Directors has designated 200 shares of preferred stock as Series A preferred stock,
of which 100 shares have been issued to the chairman/chief executive officer of the Company. The
holder of the Series A preferred stock has the right to elect a majority of the Board of Directors
as long as the holder remains, subject to certain conditions, an officer, director and at least 5%
shareholder of the Company. To date, the holder of the Series A preferred stock has not exercised
such right. The holder of the Series A preferred stock has a preference on liquidation of $1.00 per
share and no dividend or conversion rights. See Footnote 17.

Stock Option Plans and Stock Warrants

A) 2000 and 1992 Employees Stock Option Plans

In March 2001, the shareholders approved the 2000 Employees Stock Option Plan (“the 2000
Plan”), which provided for the grant of options to purchase up to 5,000,000 shares of the
Company's common stock. The Company's shareholders were asked to adopt the 2000 Plan, since
there were no additional shares available for issuance under the 1992 Plan, the 1992 Plan expired
in 2002, and shareholder approval would have been required to increase the number of shares sub-
ject to the 1992 Plan. In 2001, the Company filed a registration statement with the SEC to register
the shares issued under the 2000 Plan.

The 1992 Employees Stock Option Plan (the “1992 Plan”) provided for the grant of options to pur-
chase 3,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.

Under the terms of the two Plans, options granted thereunder may be designated as options
which qualify for incentive stock option treatment (“1SO”) under Section 422 of the Internal
Revenue Code, or options which do not so qualify (“non-1SOs”).

The Plans are administered by a Compensation Committee designated by the Board of Directors.
The Compensation Committee is comprised entirely of outside directors. The Board or the
Committee, as the case may be, has the discretion to determine eligible employees and the times
and the prices at which options will be granted, whether such options shall be ISOs or non-1SOs,
the period during which each option will be exercisable, and the number of shares subject to each
option. Options generally begin to vest one year after the date of grant. Vesting generally occurs
one-third per year over three years. Options have a life of five years. The Board or the Committee
has full authority to interpret the Plans and to establish and amend rules and regulfations relating
thereto. Under the two Plans, the exercise price of an option designated as an ISO may not be less
than the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date the option is granted.
However, in the event an option designated as an SO is granted to a ten percent shareholder, the
exercise price shall be at least 110% of such fair market value. The aggregate fair market value on
the grant date of shares, subject to options which are designated as 1SOs which become exer-
cisable in any calendar year, shall not exceed $100,000 per optionee.

The Board or the Committee may in its sole discretion grant bonuses or authorize loans to or
guarantee loans obtained by an optionee fo enable such optionee to pay any taxes that may arise
in connection with the exercise or cancellation of an option.
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Stock Option Plans and Stock Warrants (continued)

A) 2000 and 1992 Employees Stock Option Plans (continued)
The 1992 Plan expired May 2002 and the 2000 Plan will expire in the year 2010.

Weighted

Number of Average Option

Shares Price per share

Outstanding at July 1, 1999 . ... .. .. ... ... . i 1,984,870 $ 299

Options granted equal to marketprice . . ... .......... ... ... 1,337,000 1.39

Options exercised . ... ... (801,529) 2.93

Options canceled orsurrendered . ... .. ... . . ... (334,168) 3.48

Outstanding at June 30,2000 . ......... ... ... ... ... 2,186,173 5.67

Options granted equal to market price . .. .................. 1,863,632 4,93

Options granted lower than market price . ... ............ ... 444 668 1.52

Options exercised . ... . ... ... . . . ... (61,733) 2.93

Options cancelled orsurrendered .. .. .. ... . .o (247,935) 5.86

Outstanding at June 30,2001 . .......... ... .. ... ... ... 4,184,705 4.93

Options granted equal to marketprice . .. . .......... ... ..., 1,313,875 4.22

Options granted lower than marketprice .. ................. 151,500 01

Options cancelled orsurrendered ... ............ ... .. .. .... (507,732) 7.50

Options exercised . ... .. (21,999) 2.27

Outstanding at June 30,2002 .......... ... irnnenn 5,120,349 $ 448
The following is a summary of the status of employee stock options at June 30, 2002:

Outstanding Options Exercisable Options

Average Weighted Weighted

Exercise Remaining Average Average

Price Range Number Contractual Life Exercise Price Number Exercise Price

$ .01- $4.99 3,398,274 2.9 $3.70 1,797,789 $2.90

$5.00- $9.125 1,722,075 33 $6.03 1,042,333 $6.27

As of June 30, 2002 and 2001, 2,840,122 shares and 2,112,997 shares, respectively, were exercisable
under the 2000 and 1992 Employees Stock Option Plans.




B) Non-Executive Director Stock Option Plan

In January 2002, our shareholders approved the 2001 Non-Executive Director Stock Option Plan
(the 2001 Director Plan). Options are granted under the 2001 Director Plan until December 2011
to (i} non-executive directors as defined and (ii} members of any advisory board established by
the Company who are not full-time employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The
2001 Director Plan provides that each non-executive director will automatically be granted an
option to purchase 20,000 shares upon joining the Board of Directors and 10,000 on each
September 1st thereafter, prorated based upon the amount of time such person served as a
director during the period beginning twelve months prior to September 1. Each eligible director
of an advisory board will receive, upon joining the advisory board, and on each September 1st
thereafter, an additional option to purchase 5,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, pro-
viding such person has served as a director of the advisory board for the previous 12-month
period.

The Company’s shareholders were asked to adopt the 2001 Director Plan since the 1992 Non-
Executive Director Stock Plan (the 1992 Director Plan) expired in April 2002. Under the 1992
Director Plan, which was adopted by our shareholders in April 1992, directors were automati-
cally granted an option to purchase 20,000 shares upon joining the Board of Directors and an
option to purchase 10,000 shares on each September 1 thereafter.

The exercise price for options granted under the 2001 and 1992 Director Plans is 100% of the fair
market value of the common stock on the date of grant. The "fair market value” is the closing
NASDAQ bid price, or if the Company’s common stock is not quoted by NASDAQ, as reported
by the National Quotation Bureau, Inc. or a market maker of the Company’s common stock. [f
the common stock is not quoted by any of the above, the Board of Directors acting in good faith
will determine fair market value. The exercise price of options granted under both the 2001 and
1992 Director Plans must be paid at the time of exercise in cash. The term of each option com-
mences on the date it is granted and unless terminated sooner, as provided in the 2001 and 1992
Director Plans, expires five years from the date of grant. The 2001 and 1992 Director Plans are
administered by a committee of the board of directors composed of not fewer than three per-
sons who are officers of the Company (the “Committee”). The Committee has no discretion to
determine which non-executive director or advisory board member will receive options or the
number of shares subject to the option, the term of the option or the exercisability of the option.
However, the Committee will make all determinations of the interpretation of both the 2001 and
1992 Director Plans. Options granted under the 2001 and 1992 Director Plans are not qualified
for incentive stock option treatment.
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B) Non-Executive Director Stock Option Plan (continued)
A schedule of director stock option activity is as follows:

Weighted

Number of Average Option

Shares Price per share

Outstanding at June 30,1999 ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 130,000 $ 254
Options granted equal to market price . . .. ... ... ...... 50,000 .89
Options cancelled or surrendered . ... ... .. ... ... .. ...... (10,000) 5.13
Options exercised ... ... i e (40,000) 1.83
Outstanding at June 30,2000 ... ...... ... i 130,000 1.92
Options granted equal to market price . . . ... ............ 30,000 .84
Options exercised . ... ... .. e (20,000} .92
Outstanding at June 30,2001 ... ........ .. ... ...... 140,000 2.68
Options granted equal to marketprice . . .. .............. 30,000 3.76
Options exercised . .. ... . v (10,000) 3.38
Outstanding at June 30,2002 . ........... ¢ ccveve.n 160,000 2.84

The options range in exercise price from $.84 to $4.81 per share and have a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 1.9 years.



€) Commaon Stock Warrants
A schedule of common stock warrant activity is as follows:

Weighted

Number of Average Option

Shares Price per share

Outstanding at June 30, 1999 ... . ... ... .. 2,898,995 $ 388
Warrants granted equal to market price . ... ... ... ... 970,000 4.67
Warrants granted greater than market price . . ... ..... .. .. 2,949,999 2.44
Warrants granted lower than market price .. ............. 25,000 3.00
Warrants cancelled or surrendered .. ... .. ... (30,000} 5.00
Warrants exercised . ... ... (3,788,517) 3.11
QOutstanding at June 30,2000 .. ... ..... ... .. ... ..... 3,025,477 3.87
Warrants granted equal to market price . ... ........ .. ... 106,667 2.33
Warrants granted greater than market price . . ... ......... 184,780 B.57
Warrants granted lower than market price .. ............. 314,000 5.19
Warrants cancelled orsurrendered .. ... ... oL (258,806) 4.60
Warrants exercised . . ... ... . e (463,668) 3.47
Qutstanding at June 30,2001 . ... ..... .. ... .. ...... - 2,908,450 4.14
Warrants granted greater than market price .. ............ 1,217,500 2.28
Warrants granted equal to market price . . ... ... .. . L. 109,868 5.00
Warmrants exercised . ... . ... . .. (1,125,000) 1.48
Warrants cancelled or surrendered .. .. ... ... .. ... (425,000) 8.15

Outstanding at June 30,2002 .......... ... 2,685,818 3.81

In connection with an agreement entered into subsequent to June 30, 2002 between the Company
and a third party, the Company entered into an agreement whereby the Company may issue to the
strategic partner warrants to purchase 225,000 shares of common stock at a per share exercise
price of $3.65. The warrants would be exercisable for five years from date of issuance and are
issuable in three tranches of 75,000 warrants on each of the first three anniversary dates of the
agreement. If the agreement is terminated for any reason, the third party will not be able to exer-
cise such option to acquire the warrants.

In March 2002, the Company issued 100,000 warrants in connection with the acquisition of
Authentidate International AG. In February 2002, the Company issued 1,080,000 warrants to cer-
tain Series B warrant holders with an exercise price of $2.00 per warrant in exchange for their
exercise of 1,080,000 outstanding Series B warrants, for which the Company received $1,485,000 in
cash. See Footnote 19.
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C) Comman Stock Warrants (continued)

in May 2001, the Company issued 114,000 common stock purchase warrants to two foreign insti-
tutions and 150,000 common stock purchase warrants to investment bankers as professional fees
related to two private equity financings further described in Footnote 17.

In October 1999, the Company issued 2,479,999 detachable common stock purchase warrants in
connection with a private equity financing further described in Footnote 17. Other warrants
issued during the years ended June 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were generalty to various firms and
individuals providing services to the Company.

The following is a summary of the status of common stock warrants at June 30, 2002:

Outstanding Warrants Exercisable Warrants
Weighted Average Weighted Weighted
Exercise Remaining Average Average
Price Range Number Contractual Life Exercise Price Number Exercise Price
$1.00-% 4.00 1,660,503 38 $1.98 1,660,503 $1.98
$4.01-$13.04 1,025,315 2.8 $6.78 1,025,315 $6.78

D) Option Valuation

The weighted average fair value of each option granted under the Company’s option plans during
tiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $2.89, $2.90 and $5.21, respectively. These amounts were determined
using the Black Scholes option-pricing model, which values options based on the stock price at
the grant date, the expected life of the option, the estimated volatility of the stock, expected div-
idend payments and the risk-free interest rate over the expected life of the option. The dividend
yield was zero in 2002 and 2001, The expected volatility was based on the historic stock prices. The
expected volatility was 89.8% and 91.6% for 2002 and 2001, respectively. The risk-free interest rate
was the rate available on zero coupon U.S. Government issues with a term equal to the remain-
ing term for each grant. The risk-free rate ranged from 4.4% to 5.1% in 2002, 5.1% in 2001, and
ranged from 6.3% to 6.5% in 2000, respectively. The expected life of the options was estimated
based on the exercise history from previous grants and is estimated to be one to five years.

The Company applies APB No. 25 in accounting for its stock option plans and, accordingly, no
compensation cost has been recognized in the Company's financial statements for stock options
under any of the stock plans which on the date of grant the exercise price per share was equal to
or exceeded the fair value per share. However, compensation cost has heen recognized for war-
rants granted to non-employees for services provided. If under SFAS No. 123, the Company deter-
mined compensation cost based on the fair value at the grant date for its stock options, net loss
and loss per share would have been increased to the pro forma amounts indicated:



2002 2001 2000

Net loss
Asreported . ....... .. .. e $(9,951,402) $(9,340,103) $(5,274,043)
Proforma ........ ... ... ..., (14,431,727) (12,869,273) (5,599,269)
Basic and diluted loss per common share
Asreported .. ...... ... ... $ (69 $ (63) $ (49
Proforma ...... ... ... ... ... ... ... {.95) (.86) (.b1)

The effects of applying SFAS 123 on providing pro-forma disciosures are not necessarily likely to
be representative of the effects on reported net income for future years.

Commitments - Employment Agreements and Contingencies

In January, 2000, the Company entered into a new three year employment agreement with its Chief
Executive Officer, expiring on January 1, 2003. The agreement provides for (i) a base salary of
$250,000 in the first year of the agreement, increasing by 10% in each year thereafter; (ii) a bonus
equal to 3% of the Company's pre-tax net income, with such additional bonuses as may be award-
ed in the discretion of the Board of Directors, (iii) certain insurance and severance benefits; and
(iv) automohbile and expenses.

In July 2000, Authentidate, inc. entered into an empfoyment agreement with its new Chief
Executive Officer for a three year term. The employment agreement provides for (i) annual salary
of $250,000, (ii) annual bonus up to $200,000 with a minimum bonus of $80,000 paid with the regu-
lar payroll during the first year, (iii) a severance agreement equal to 12 months salary in the event
the Company terminates this agreement without cause, (iv) the award of Authentidate, Inc. com-
mon shares equal to 5% of the shares outstanding on the date of the empfoyment agreement, vest-
ing in equal amounts over a four-year period commencing one year from the date of the agree-
ment, and (v) the award of employee stock options to purchase 200,000 Authentidate Holding
Corp. common shares vesting in equal amounts over a four-year period, at an exercise price of
$6.3125 per share.

In October 2000, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its Chief Financial
Officer which provides for (i} annual salary of $100,000 increasing to $110,000 on January 1, 2001
(ii) annual increases every October to be determined by the Compensation Committee (iii) eligi-
bility for annual bonuses at the discretion of Compensation Committee (iv) a severance agree-
ment equal to 12 months’ safary and (v) the award of Authentidate, Inc. stock options equal to
1.25% of the stock outstanding convertible in AHC stock options at such time that the sharehold-
ers approve such conversion, which occurred in March 2001,

In March 2002, Authentidate AG entered into a three-year employment contract with its Chief
Executive Officer providing for (i} a base salary of $200,000 with annual increases of 5%, (ii)
options to purchase 184,000 shares of AHC common stock at $4.54 per share, (iii) a honus of up to
50% of the base salary in the event AG achieves its operating targets approved by the
Compensation Committee and (iv) a severance agreement not to exceed 18 months of his base
salary or until he obtains alternative employment.
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=

The Company is the defendant in a third party complaint filed by Shore Venture Group, LLC in the
Federal District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania. The third party complaint was filed
on May 7, 2001. Shore Venture is the defendant to an action commenced by Berwyn Capital. The
third party complaint alleges a claim of breach of contract and seeks indemnification. We moved
to dismiss the third party complaint and the motion was recently denied by the Court. This matter
is currently in the discovery stage, which is expected to be completed by the end of September
2002. We are currently involved in settlement negotiations with Shore Venture. Management
believes that the claim will not have a material adverse impact on our financial condition, results
of operations or cash flows,

We have also been advised of a claim by Shore Venture Group concerning additional shares of
common stock of our subsidiary, Authentidate, Inc. This claim is not before the court in the third-
party litigation previously discussed. We are conducting settlement negotiations with Shore
Venture and believe that a settlement will not have a material adverse impact on our financial con-
dition, results of operations or cash flows. No formal action has been commenced in connection
with this claim, and the settiement negotiations are being held at this juncture in an etfort to avoid
resorting to litigation on this issue.

We are engaged in no other litigation the effect of which would be anticipated to have a material
adverse impact on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Cash: Flows - Supplemental Information

Cash flows

The Company paid interest in the amounts of $115,378, $115,323 and $364,954 for the years ended
June 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Income taxes paid aggregated $1,912, $230 and $133 for
the years ended June 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Noncash investing and financing activities

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002, the Company issued 1,425,875 shares of its common
stock to acquire all the shares of Authentidate International AG that it did not already own. This
transaction is more fully described in Footnote 1. During the fiscal year, the Company entered into
capital lease obligations for property and equipment totaling $278,554, including interest.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, the Company issued 917,608 shares of its common
stock with a value approximating $4,200,000 to acquire a portion of the remaining minority inter-
est of Authentidate, Inc. In addition, the Company entered into capital lease obligations totaling
$15,923. Furthermore, the Company issued 28,082 shares of common stock out of treasury (total-
ing $76,719) in connection with preferred stock being converted into common stock.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000, the Company issued 1,223,075 common shares of the
Company's stock pursuant to the conversion of $3,975,000 of convertible debt into common stock.



3.

€mployee Benefit Plan

The Company has a qualified defined contribution 401(k) profit sharing plan for all eligible
employees.The Company can make contributions in percentages of compensation, or amounts as
determined by the Company. The Company contributed $134,640, $111,869 and $25,878 to the plan
during the years ended June 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

4. Intangible Assets
A summary of intangible assets is as follows:
June 30, 2002 June 30, 2001
Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated Useful Life
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization In Years
Patents $ 260,581 $ 24,792 $ 95,885 $ 9,463 17
Trademarks 106,803 15,654 77,945 10,313 20
Completed technologies 59,400 7,425 — — 2
Accreditation 121,800 15,225 — — 2
Licenses 13,600 4,533 — — 3
Total $ 562,184 $ 67,629 $ 173,830 $ 19,776
Also refer to Footnote 1 with regard to Completed Technologies and Accreditation. The Company
amortizes intangible assets under a straight line method. Intangible amortization expense is
expected to be immaterial for the next five fiscal years.
I5. Financial Instruments

Concentrations of credit risk

Financial instruments which subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash
and cash equivalents and trade accounts receivable. To reduce credit risk, the Company places its
temporary cash investments with high credit quality financial institutions. The Company's credit
customers are not concentrated in any specific industry or business. The Company establishes an
allowance for doubtful accounts based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific cus-
tomers, historical trends and other information.

At June 30, 2002, there was one customer whose accounts receivable balance exceeded 10% of
total accounts receivable. At June 30, 2001, accounts receivabie from one customer approximat-
ed 31% of total accounts receivable.

37




38

Authentidate Holding Corp. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Instruments (continued)

6.

Fair value
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value.

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivahle, accounts payable and accrued expenses

and other current liahilities

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued expenses and other current liahilities approximates fair value because of the short matu-
rity of these instruments,

Long-term debht

The remaining balance of long-term debt approximates fair value based on its discounted face
amount. Consequently, the carrying value of the borrowings under long-term debt approximates
fair value.

Segment Reporting

SFAS 131 establishes standards for reporting financial and descriptive information about an
enterprise's operating segments in its annual financial statements and selected segment infor-
mation in interim financial reports.

The Company has three reportable segments: DocStar, a document imaging software company,
DJS Marketing Group, Inc. (DJS), a computer systems integrator; and all Authentidate related
companies including Authentidate, Inc., Authentidate AG and Trac Medical Solutions, Inc.
DocStar sells document storage and retrieval software and related products through a national
dealer network of approximately 100 dealers, and DJS markets computer services including net-
work services, Internet services and software installation and integration. In addition, DJS sells
a complete line of personal computers and peripheral equipment in the Albany, New York area
primarily, although DJS has several national accounts. The Authentidate related businesses all
provide authentication software services nationally and through AG internationally.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of sig-
nificant accounting policies.

The Company’s reportable segments are separate divisions which are managed separately. The
corporate expenses are non-operating expenses which incfude all public company type expenses
and applies to all of the Company's operating segments, and therefore should be segregated.



Segment Information

2002

Revenues from external customers .. ...

Intersegment revenues
Interest and other income

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortization .. .... ..

Segment profit/(loss)

Segment assets

2001

Revenues from external customers ... ..

Intersegment revenues
Interest and other revenue

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortization ........

Segment profit/(loss)

Segment assets

2000

Revenues from external customers ... ..

Intersegment revenues
Interest and other income

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortization ........

Segment profit/(loss)

Segment assets

Authentidate

DocStar DJS Related Totals

$ 6,719,803 $ 9,871,923 $ 51,178 $ 16,642,904
— 88,577 — 88,577

15,411 23 25,725 41,159
110,185 1,675 12,964 124,824
431,910 60,819 1,172,387 1,665,116
287,859 96,801 (5,723,055) (5,338,395)
4,878,141 4,112,197 3,316,513 12,306,851

$ 6,239,579 $ 11,620,407 $ 558 $ 17,860,544
— 428,488 — 428,488

14,792 — 2,352 17,144
112,784 12,032 — 124,816
411,441 58,468 1,120,840 1,590,749
(295,680) 385,283 (4,954,729) (4,865,126)
5,454,528 3,372,212 3,746,305 25,573,045

$ 5,589,830 $ 9,699,764 $ 144 $15,289,738
— 249,943 — 249,943

13,084 — 87 13,171
292,600 7,394 — 299,994
358,478 48,858 124,867 532,203
(1,177,239) 231,357 (2,342,198) (3,288,080}
8,237,551 2,637,368 1,827,971 12,702,890
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Reconciliations 2002 2001 2000
Revenues

Total revenues for reportable segments ... ... ... $ 16,731,481 $ 18,289,032 $ 15,539,681
Elimination of intersegment revenues . ......... (88,577) (428,488) (249,943)
Total consolidated revenues ................ $16,642,904 $ 17,860,544 $ 15,289,738
Profit or (loss)

Total profit or loss for reportable segments . ... .. $ (5,338,395) § (4,865,126) $ (3,288,080)
Product development expenses . ............. (2,170,173) (2,255,284) (665,533)
Corporate expenses and other . . ............. {2,494,793) (2,188,413) (1,358,311)
Elimination of intersegment profits ... ......... 12,232 (15,280) 1,140
Loss before income taxes . . .. ..o v nnen. . $ (9,991,129) $ (9,324,103) $ (5,310,784)
Assets

Total assets for reportable segments . . ......... $ 12,306,851 $ 12,573,045 $ 12,702,890
Corporateassets . ............ ... .. ...... 13,760,530 13,322,487 8,437,792
Elimination of intersegment profit . . ........... (15,395) (27,627) (12,347)
Total consolidated assets .................. $ 26,051,986 $ 25,867,905 $21,128,335

Private €quity Offerings

(n 2001 the Company in two separate transactions closed an the sale of $5,500,000 of its securi-
ties to two foreign institutions pursuant to Regulation S, promulgated under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended. In the transactions, the Company sold 5,500 of its Series C Convertible pre-
ferred stock, with a dividend rate of 4%, payable in either cash or Company common stock to the
foreign institutions convertible at $4.845 per share and five-year warrants to purchase 114,000
shares of common stock exercisable at $4.845 per share. The conversion price is not subject to
resets or adjustments for changes in the market price of the Company’s common stock. The right
of conversion incorporated into the Series C preferred stock constitutes a beneficial conversion
feature which was determined to have a value of approximately $1,464,002. The beneficial conver-
sion feature was amortized as a preferred stock dividend over a one-year period commencing July
1, 2001 using the effective interest method. The Company received net proceeds of approximately
$5,200,000 from the transaction after paying commissions and expenses. The securities sold in
this offering are restricted securities under the terms of Regulfation S and may not be transferred
or resold in the United States for a period of one year, except pursuant to registration under the
Securities Act or an exemption thereunder. During the fiscal year 1,500 Series C preferred shares
were converted into 309,598 common shares. The Company intends to continue to seek additional
funds which may be raised through public or private financing and may include debt or equity
securities.



During fiscal 2000, the Company closed three concurrent private offerings. In the first offering,
the Company sold 740,000 units at an aggregate offering price of $740,000, each unit consisting of
two shares of common stock and two Series B common stock purchase warrants (the "Series B
warrants"). The Series B warrants entitle the holder to purchase one share of common stock at an
exercise price of $1.375 per share during the offering period commencing on the date of issuance
and terminating five years thereafter. The Series B warrants are redeemable at any time com-
mencing one year after issuance at the option of the Company with not less than 30 nor more than
60 days written notice to the registered holders at a redemption price of $.05 per warrant provid-
ed; (i) The public sale of the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the Series B war-
rants are covered by a tentative registration statement; and (ii) During each of the immediately
preceding 20 consecutive trading days ending within 10 days of the date of the notice of redemp-
tion, the closing bid price of the Company's common stock is at least $3.25 per share. As of June
30, 2002, 400,000 Series B warrants are outstanding.

In the second offering, the Company sold 50,000 shares of a newly created class of Series B con-
vertible cumulative preferred stock (the "Series B preferred stock™). The Series B preferred stock
was sold at $25.00 per share for an aggregate offering price of $1,250,000. Dividends on the Series
B preferred stock are payable at the rate of 10% per annum, semi-annually in cash. Each share of
Series B preferred stock is convertible into shares of the Company's common stock or is con-
verted into such number of shares of the common stock as shall equal $25.00 divided by the con-
version price of $1.875 per share subject to adjustment under certain circumstances.
Commencing three years after the closing, the conversion price shall be the lower of $1.875 per
share or the average of the closing bid and asked price of the Company's common stock for the 10
consecutive trading days immediately ending one trading day prior to the notice of the date of
conversion; provided, however, that the holders are not entitled to convert more than 20% of the
Series B preferred shares held by such holder on the third anniversary of the date of issuance per
month. The Series B preferred stock is redeemable at the option of the Company at any time com-
mencing one year after issuance or not less than 30 nor more than 60 days written notice at a
redemption price of $25 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends provided; (i) the public sale
of the shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series B preferred stock (the
“Conversion Shares”) are covered by an effective registration statement or are otherwise exempt
from registration; and (ii} during the immediately preceding 20 consecutive trading days ending
within 10 days of the date of the notice of redemption, the closing bid price of the Company's
common stock is not less than $3.75 per share. As of June 30, 2002, 22,000 Series B preferred
shares have been converted leaving 28,000 shares cutstanding which are convertible in 373,333
common shares.

Commencing 34 months after the Closing, the Series B preferred stock is redeemable at the
option of the Company without regard to the closing price of the Company's common stock.
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As part of this equity offering in fiscal 2000 the Company also created a new subsidiary,
Authentidate inc. In connection with the above offerings, the purchasers were granted the right
to purchase 20% of Authentidate for $100,000. In addition, the Purchasers were issued an aggre-
gate of 999,999 Series C common stock purchase warrants (the "Series C warrants'). The Series
C warrants were redeemable at any time commencing six months after issuance, on not less than
30 nor more than 60 days written notice to registered holders at a redemption price equal to $.05
per Warrant, provided (i) the public sale of the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
the Series C warrants (the "warrant shares”) are covered by an effective registration statement
or are otherwise exempt from registration; and (ii) during each of the immediately preceding 20
consecutive trading days ending within 10 days of the date of the notice of redemption, the clos-
ing bid price of the Company's common stock is not less than 120% of the current exercise price
of the Series C warrants.

The Series C warrants were also divided into three classes (333,333 warrants per class) to pro-
vide for varying exercise prices. The exercise price of the Series C warrants is as follows:

Class | - $1.50 per share of common stock, increasing (i) $.75 per share thirty days after the effective
date of the registration statement covering the underlying shares (the “Registration Statement”); (ii)
an additional $.75 per share seven months after the effective date of the Registration Statement; and
(iiiy an additional $.75 per share thirteen months after the effective date of the Registration
Statement, subject to adjustment for stock splits and corporate reorganizations.

Class Il - $1.50 per share of common stock, increasing (i) $.75 per share sixty days after the effec-
tive date of the Registration Statement; (ii) an additional $.75 per share seven months after the
effective date of the Registration Statement; and (iii) an additional $.75 per share thirteen months
after the effective date of the Registration Statement, subject to adjustment for stock splits and
corporate reorganizations.

Class lll - $1.50 per share of commaon stock, increasing (i) $.75 per share ninety days after the
effective date of the Registration Statement; (ii) an additional $.75 per share seven months after
the effective date of the Registration Statement; and (iii) an additional $.75 per share thirteen
months after the effective date of the Registration Statement, subject to adjustment for stock
splits and corporate reorganizations,

As of June 30, 2002 all of the Series C warrants have been exercised.

The Company received gross proceeds of approximately $2,100,000, approximately $1,900,000
after expenses. The Company utilized the proceeds of the three offerings as follows: approxi-
mately $600,000 was utilized to repay a portion of the Company’s line of credit; approximately
$160,000 was utilized to make a past due interest payment on the Company's outstanding 8% con-
vertible notes; and the remainder was reserved for working capital.

Subsequent to year end, in July 2002, the Company sold 660,077 shares of its common stock at
$3.03 per share in a private transaction. The Company received gross proceeds of approximately
$2.0 million before expenses. The Company also issued 132,015 common stock purchase warrants
to the buyers, which have an exercise price of $3.26 per share and a five-year life. The proceeds
will be used for business development, sales and marketing of Authentidate along with general
working capital needs of the Company.



Loan-Related Party

The Company has entered into certain loan and security arrangements involving Mr. JohnT. Botti,
our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, principally relating to certain obligations to financial
institutions collateralized by Mr. Botti's stock in AHC. The Company initially established these
arrangements in 2001, and has agreed to certain modifications in February 2002, as described
below.

In January 2001, the Company made a loan of $317,000 to Mr. Botti to enable him to avoid a
margin call on the shares ot AHC common stock owned by him that were held in a brokerage
account, as the Board of Directors believed that failing to do so would have a material adverse
impact on the market price of its stock (the “2001 Loan”). The 2001 Loan was collateralized by a
lien on all of the shares of AHC owned by Mr. Botti, as well as shares issuable to Mr. Botti upon
the exercise of stock options granted to him. As of February 14, 2002, the Company agreed to loan
an additional amount of $203,159 to Mr. Botti, which was also collateraiized by a lien on all shares
of AHC owned by Mr. Botti or issuable to him (the "2002 Loan"). The 2001 Loan bears interest at
the rate of 9% per annum and is due on January 5, 2003. The 2002 Loan bears interest at the rate
of 6% per annum and is being repaid in bi-weekly installments of $5,000. In connection with the
transactions described above, Mr. Botti pledged to the Company the shares of AHC stock cur-
rently owned by him or that he may later acquire upon the exercise of options. AHC's interest has
been perfected as to 409,341 shares of common stock of AHC owned (beneficially and of record)
by Mr. Botti, and options to purchase 1,334,668 shares of common stock of AHC. The pledge addi-
tionally extends to any proceeds realized by Mr. Botti from the sale of the pledged securities. Mr.
Botti has provided information demonstrating that the pledged assets are sufficient to cover his
outstanding obtligations to the Company.

The Company has been advised that the proceeds of both loans have been applied in full in order
to satisfy indebtedness incurred by Mr. Botti to certain financial institutions. The 2001 Loan was
necessitated primarily by a decline in the market price of the common stock of AHC. The 2002
Loan was primarily necessitated by the need for Mr. Botti to repay certain indebtedness arising
out of private business ventures. The loans were made following a determination that they were
in the best interests of AHC and its shareholders in order to avoid the adverse effects of a sub-
stantial forced sale of Mr. Botti's stock in AHC by his creditors. The determination for the 2002
Loan was made by the Compensation Committee as a result of the pressure on our stock price,
margin calls faced by Mr. Botti and other considerations. The 2001 Loan was approved by the
Board of Directors. At June 30, 2002, the cumulative loan balance of $507,431 is recorded as a
reduction to shareholder equity.
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I9. Private Financing
In February 2002, the Company offered the holders of its Series B common stock warrants the
opportunity to receive new warrants upon the exercise of the Series B warrants for cash.The exer-
cise price of these warrants was $1.375 per common stock warrant. The warrant holders would
receive a new warrant exercisable at $2.00 per common stock warrant, which was slightly above
the market price of the Company's common stock on February 19, 2002, the date the Board
approved the transaction. 1,080,000 warrants were exercised and the Company received $1,485,000
in cash; in addition 1,080,000 new warrants were issued. The new warrants expire October 1, 2004
and have no registration rights.
20. Quarterly Data Financial (Unaudited)
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2002
Netsales .................... $ 3,263,503 $4,131,286 $ 3,592,159 $ 5,655,956
Grossprofit . ........ ... .. ..... 972,142 1,190,999 961,126 1,428,102
Netfoss ........ ... ... .. ..... (2,608,970) (2,222,955) (2,533,384) (2,586,093)
Losspershare ................. (0.19) (0.16) (0.18) (0.16)
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2001
Netsales .................... $ 4,483,479 $ 4,034,523 $ 4,383,397 $ 4,959,145
Gross profit .. ........ ... ...... 1,246,677 996,392 644,332 789,187
Netloss . ..........ccivin... (1,575,896) (1,623,016) (2,976,080) (3,165,111)
losspershare ....... ..ol (Q.11) 0.11) (0.20) (0.21)
2l. Note Receivable

On January 9, 2002, AHC announced a letter of intent to acquire Zylab International Inc., a pri-
vately owned company in the document imaging and retrieved business. In connection with that
letter of intent, the Company loaned Zylab $500,000 collateralized by certain assets of Zylab
including the inteflectual property and software code. In June 2002, the Company was offered
$400,000 by Zylab to pay off the loan in full, including $350,000 in cash and $50,000 in prepaid
license fees for a product DocStar licenses from Zylab, pius 18% of future net income of Zylab or
a successor company after a $75,000 threshold. In addition, the planned acquisition of Zylab by the
Company would be cancelled. The Company accepted this proposal subsequent to June 30, 2002
and received payment of $350,000. The Company has recorded a loan loss reserve of $100,000 in
June 2002.
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